

STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

INCLUDES POLICIES ON

DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE PREVENTION STUDENT TECHNOLOGY ACADEMIC HONESTY

POLICIES IN THIS BOOK ARE ALSO LOCATED ON THE CURTIS WEBSITE AT CURTIS.EDU

SEPTEMBER 2021

CONTENTS

SECTION

CURTIS STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT	
I. Preamble	3
II. Rights of Student Citizenship	3
III. Responsibilities of Student Citizenship	4
IV. Procedure for Complaint	6
V. Student Conduct Board (SCB)	7
VI. Parallel Proceedings	7
VII. Sanctions	7
VIII. Interim Suspensions	8
IX. Withdrawal	8
X. Medical/Psychological Situations	9
DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE PREVENTION POLICY	10
STUDENT TECHNOLOGY POLICY	13
ACADEMIC HONESTY POLICY	17

CURTIS STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

I. Preamble

The Curtis Institute of Music educates and trains exceptionally gifted young musicians to engage a local and global community through the highest level of artistry. One of the world's leading music schools, Curtis provides full-tuition scholarships to all of its students, ensuring that admissions are based solely on artistic promise. A Curtis education is uniquely tailored to the individual student, with personalized attention from a celebrated faculty and frequent performance opportunities.

Curtis is a community in which musical and intellectual growth, learning by doing, mutual tolerance, and respect for freedom of thought and expression are principles of great importance. In an environment that promotes the free interchange of ideas, cultural diversity, and space for artistic, intellectual, and social growth, Curtis students are encouraged to take advantage of the range of opportunities available to them, thereby deepening their own insights and expanding their educational experience beyond Curtis. The Curtis community consists of students, faculty, staff, and those otherwise affiliated with the school, all of whom are invited to participate actively in the greater Philadelphia, state, national, and international communities in which they reside.

By accepting membership into the Curtis community, a student accepts an obligation to promote its welfare by assuming the rights and responsibilities listed below. Each member of this community is responsible for his or her own actions and is expected to respect the rights of others.

Whenever, in this Code, a particular Curtis officer is identified by title, a designee may be substituted with the approval of the dean.

II. Rights of Student Citizenship

Membership in the Curtis community affords every student certain rights that are essential to the school's educational mission and its character as a community:

A. The right to have access to and participate in the academic and nonacademic opportunities afforded by Curtis, subject to applicable standards or requirements.

B. The right to freedom of thought and expression.

C. The right to be free from discrimination on the basis of race, color, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion, national or ethnic origin, age, disability, or veteran status.

D. The right to the fair process in the determination of accountability for conduct, as set forth in this Code.

III. Responsibilities of Student Citizenship

Students are expected to exhibit responsible behavior regardless of time or place, both on and off campus. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action. At Curtis, responsible behavior is a standard of conduct that reflects higher expectations than may be prevalent outside the Curtis community. Any student who violates this Code is subject to the disciplinary sanctions as set forth here.

Responsible behavior includes but is not limited to the following obligations.

A. Students shall:

- 1. Comply with all provisions of the Curtis "Academic Honesty Policy." (Page 23)
- 2. Comply with all Curtis policies, procedures, and regulations.
- 3. Respect the health and safety of others. This prohibits acts or threats of physical abuse, verbal abuse, threats, intimidation, harassment, coercion, and/or other conduct that threatens or endangers the health or safety of any person. This also includes any violation of the Curtis <u>Sexual and Gender-Based Harassment and Interpersonal Violence Policy</u>.
- 4. Respect the rights of fellow students to participate in organizations and in relationships with other students without fear, threat, or any act of hazing. Hazing is any act which endangers the mental or physical health or safety of a student for the purpose of initiation and admission into, affiliation with, or as a condition of continued membership in any group or organization. The express or implied consent of the victim will not be a defense. Apathy or acquiescence in the presence of hazing is not a neutral act; it is a violation of this Code.
- 5. Comply and adhere to Curtis Student Technology Policy (page 18)
- 6. Be honest and truthful in dealings with Curtis about one's own identity (e.g., name or Social Security number), and in the use of Curtis and other identification.
- 7. Cooperate fully and honestly in any student disciplinary matter.
- 8. Comply with all Curtis contracts, such as the Lenfest Hall Housing Agreement and other contracts.
- 9. Engage in responsible social conduct that reflects credit upon the Curtis community and to exemplify good citizenship in any community.
- 10. Comply with federal, state, and local laws, including complying with the directions of Curtis officials or law enforcement officers acting in performance of their duties.

- 11. Comply with state and local laws and regulations that prohibit the use, possession, or distribution of alcoholic beverages to any person less than twenty-one (21) years of age.
- B. Students shall not attempt to do any of these things:
 - 1. Engage in conduct toward other students that infringes upon the Rights of Student Citizenship.
 - 2. Steal and/or damage, deface or misuse of property or facilities of Curtis or of other members of the Curtis community or other personal or public property.
 - 3. Possess, duplicate, or use keys on any Curtis premises or otherwise obtain entry without proper authorization.
 - 4. Possess or use dangerous articles (such as firearms, explosive materials, other weapons, dangerous chemicals, etc.) on Curtis property or at Curtis events.
 - 5. Use, possess, manufacture or distribute alcoholic beverages on Curtis premises, except as expressly permitted by Curtis regulations.
 - 6. Use or consume any alcohol or controlled substance while representing Curtis at outside performances, concerts or any other Curtis function. This prohibition applies to every student regardless of age, and includes periods before the performance, regardless of place, and during or after the performance while at the performance venue. Under no circumstances should a student appear at any performance or other Curtis functions while under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs. For additional information, refer to the Drug and Alcohol Abuse Prevention Student Policy.
 - 7. Possess, use, or distribute any controlled substance in violation of law. Refer to the Drug and Alcohol Abuse Prevention Student Policy.
 - 8. Engage in the unauthorized entry into or transfer of any Curtis computer file or the file or computer of any member of the Curtis community; use another person's identification or password; use any computer or electronic device to interfere with the work of another member of the community and/or the normal operation of Curtis. Students are not permitted to use Curtis computers, email accounts, or labs for illegal purposes or for the transmission of material that is unlawful, harassing, libelous, invasive of another's privacy, abusive, threatening, harmful, vulgar, obscene, or otherwise objectionable, or that infringes or may infringe the intellectual property or other rights of a person or organization. This includes the use of electronic messaging, texting, Facebook, or any other social media outlet.

- 9. Distribute unauthorized copyrighted material, including peer-to-peer file sharing. Violation of this policy may subject the student to civil and criminal penalties, as well as Code of Conduct sanctions.
- 10. Disrupt or obstruct teaching, performance, or any disciplinary process, or other Curtis activity, including public service functions, whether on or off campus.

IV. Procedure for Complaint

This procedure is intended to protect the rights of the student making the complaint and the student against whom the complaint is made. It ensures that the latter student is given the opportunity to respond to the complaint and is accorded due process under this procedure. To protect the integrity of this process, it is important that it remain strictly confidential, and that all parties refrain from discussing it with any individual or entity outside the designated procedure.

Any member of the Curtis community may file a complaint against a student for a violation of the Student Code of Conduct by giving a written statement to the senior associate dean of student affairs. This should be filed as soon as possible and preferably within three days of the action upon which the complaint is based. In cases of sexual misconduct, refer to the <u>Sexual and Gender-Based</u> <u>Harassment and Interpersonal Violence Policy</u> Complaint Procedure.

After the complaint is received, the student against whom the complaint has been made will be required to meet with the senior associate dean of student affairs [hereafter, "senior associate dean"]. The senior associate dean will discuss the matter with the student, present the student with a statement of the substance of the complaint, and explain the procedure governing the consideration of a complaint. When appropriate, the student making the complaint and the student against whom the complaint is made will be provided with an advisor, and if needed, an interpreter. The advisor is not an advocate, but rather a source of personal and moral support to the student and is to help ensure that the student understands the disciplinary process.

The student then has the option to:

- 1. Admit the validity of the complaint and request a meeting with the senior associate dean. The dean and the senior associate dean will determine the appropriate sanction to be imposed. The sanction may be appealed as outlined in section V. item E.
- 2. Request a hearing before the Student Conduct Board.

No Contact Order: At any time during this process, the dean and/or senior associate dean may determine that an Administrative Order to Refrain from Contact be issued. While violation of such an order is independent grounds for disciplinary action, its issuance carries no presumption of culpability for either party.

V. Student Conduct Board (SCB)

A. The dean will serve as the Student Conduct Board Administrator.

B. Student Conduct Board (SCB) will consist of the dean acting as chair and two impartial parties selected by the dean. The students involved will be informed of the membership of the SCB and will have the opportunity to state whether they feel any member cannot act impartially with regard to the complaint. In such cases, the dean will evaluate the concerns raised by the student and make a final decision as to the makeup of the SCB.

SCB will provide for the administration and conduct of any hearing in a manner consistent with this Code to determine whether a student has violated the Code and whether sanctions are to be imposed. The nature of any such hearing - including whether it will be by live or written testimony, who will be permitted to appear and participate, and the nature of the evidence it will consider will be determined by the SCB, taking into account the nature of the allegations and any other relevant information. Any such hearing will not be open to the public or members of the Curtis community. Due to the sensitive nature of this process, members of the SCB and all participants are expected to keep all proceedings strictly confidential.

C. The outcome of the SCB hearing will be presented to both parties in written form privately, and simultaneously.

D. A decision by the **SCB** is final unless a written appeal is filed with the senior associate dean within 48 hours of the decision.

E. Appeal Procedure: The appeal will be decided by a designee in Senior Administration who has not had any direct role in the SCB's decision. This designee will determine what is required and allowed in connection with the appeal, including whether to permit live or written submissions, on a case-by-case basis. The designee will have the power to modify [and either increase or decrease any sanction], remand, affirm, or reverse any determination of the SCB. The decision of the designee is final.

VI. Parallel Proceedings

Curtis disciplinary proceedings may be instituted against a student charged with conduct that potentially violates both criminal law and the Student Code of Conduct. Proceedings under this Code may move forward without regard to whether criminal or other proceedings are pending. Sanctions will not be subject to change because of the outcome of any other external proceeding, whether criminal or civil.

VII. Sanctions

A. These sanctions (one or more) may be imposed upon any student found to have violated this Code:

- 1. Warning written notice of violation, no further sanctions
- 2. Written reprimand with conditions
- 3. Loss of privileges
- 4. Monetary penalty and/or restitution
- 5. Suspension- separation of the student from Curtis. Conditions for readmission may be specified.
- 6. Expulsion permanent separation from Curtis
- 7. Withholding of the degree or diploma
- 8. Other sanctions for example: work assignments, essays, service, etc. This is not meant to limit the available sanctions, which will be determined on a case-by-case basis.
- 9. Revocation of admission and/or degree or diploma admission and/or a conferred degree or diploma may be revoked for fraud, misrepresentation, or other violation of the Curtis Student Code, or other violation of Curtis standards in obtaining the degree, or other serious violations by a student prior to graduation.

B. SCB will decide whether a determination and/or sanction will be made part of the student's permanent academic record. In those cases, in which the determination and/or sanction is made a part of the student's disciplinary record, the student may ask that the dean expunge the record after 18 months, if there has been no other allegation of a Code violation. The dean, whose decision on the request will be final, will take into account the student's entire record and the offense itself in deciding whether to grant the request to expunge the record.

VIII. Interim Suspensions

If a student is behaving in a manner which is threatening to him- or herself or others, or which significantly interferes with the student's education or the rights of others, the senior associate dean or dean may initiate these procedures.

Interim suspension may be imposed by the senior associate dean or dean when necessary to protect the health and safety of a student or of the community, or to allow time for a behavioral mental health assessment or evaluation, including an assessment of whether the student's mental health permits the student's participation in this process.

IX. Withdrawal

The dean, in consultation with the senior associate dean, may immediately withdraw a student if it is determined, by a preponderance of the evidence (that it is more likely than not) that the student

is engaging in or likely to engage in behavior which poses a substantial danger of causing imminent harm to the student, to others or to substantial property rights, or which renders the student unable to engage in basic required activities necessary to obtain an education, or that substantially impedes the lawful activities of others.

X. Medical/Psychological Situations

A. **Referral for Evaluation -** The senior associate dean may require a professional medical or mental health evaluation of a student when appropriate. The evaluation, conducted at Curtis expense, must be swiftly completed. A student who fails or refuses to cooperate in such an evaluation may be suspended and/or referred for Code of Conduct action.

B. Involuntary Medical and/or Psychological Withdrawal Procedures - If a medical evaluation or administrative assessment supports the need for withdrawal, a conference will be held with the dean, the senior associate dean and, if necessary, the consulting health professional. The student will be informed of the time, date and place, and will be given an opportunity to independently review the medical and/or psychiatric evaluation prior to the conference. The student shall notify the associate dean in advance of any witness or information the student expects to present at the conference. The student may present information for or against involuntary withdrawal. The conference will be conversational and non-adversarial; however, the dean will exercise active control over the proceeding, including deciding who may present information. Formal rules of evidence will not apply. Anyone who disrupts the conference may be excluded. The student may be assisted in the conference by a family member, licensed health professional, and/or advisor appointed by the senior associate dean.

A prompt written decision will be rendered. If the student is withdrawn, the notification will include information on withdrawal and readmission.

DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE PREVENTION POLICY

Drug Free Campus

Curtis has adopted a Drug- and Alcohol-Abuse Prevention Policy in order to provide and maintain a campus free of the unlawful use of drugs and alcohol. Parts of that policy are based upon the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act Amendments of 1989, the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and applicable regulations issued by the United States Department of Education. For purposes of this policy, drugs are defined as any substance which is defined, listed, or identified as a controlled substance under federal statutes and regulations. Further, drugs are defined as a controlled substance under federal statutes and regulations, including, but not limited to, marijuana, methamphetamines, cocaine, amphetamines, barbiturates, methadone, methaqualone, hallucinogens [including, but not limited to, PCP, LSD, and psilocybin (mushrooms)], narcotics or opiates (including, but not limited to, heroin, morphine, opium, Demerol, and Percodan), and Fentanyl. Curtis intends through this policy to promote a safe learning and work environment for its community and to discourage and prevent unlawful conduct and activities relating to drugs and alcohol. This policy and the procedures implementing it are applicable to all members of the Curtis community.

All members of the Curtis community are prohibited from unlawfully manufacturing, distributing, dispensing, possessing, purchasing, transferring, selling, or using a controlled substance (sometimes called an illicit drug) and/or alcohol on Curtis property or during participation in any activities of Curtis regardless of whether such activities take place on or off the property of Curtis. Also, all members of the Curtis community are required to be at Curtis without having engaged in the current, illegal use of any controlled substance and free of the unlawful presence of any controlled substance in their body systems. All members of the community are prohibited from storing in a locker or desk, or other repository on Curtis property, any controlled substance that is not lawful for him or her to possess. Anyone who is convicted for a violation of a criminal drug statute must notify the senior associate dean of student affairs, in writing, of such conviction within five (5) calendar days after such conviction. Anyone who engages in conduct that is prohibited by this policy or who does not give the required notice of conviction will be subject to disciplinary sanctions, as determined by Curtis, in its discretion, up to and including dismissal from Curtis. Also, anyone who engages in conduct prohibited by this policy may be required to successfully complete a rehabilitation or treatment program, determined to be appropriate by Curtis, in its discretion, in order to be eligible to remain at Curtis. Curtis has the discretion whether or not to accept the determination made by the rehabilitation or treatment program that the student successfully completed such program. Reinstatement with Curtis, either during or upon successful completion of a rehabilitation or treatment program, is not guaranteed. The decision whether or not to reinstate at any time will be made solely by Curtis, in its discretion.

All members of the Curtis community are reminded that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, purchase, transfer, sale, or use of controlled substances (i.e., illicit drugs) and/or alcohol is against the law. Curtis may refer any violations of law to local, state, or federal law enforcement authorities for prosecution.

Education and Prevention

All members of the Curtis community are reminded that there are serious health risks associated with the unlawful use of controlled substances and the abuse of alcohol.

Students sometimes think about changing their drinking habits for any number of reasons. Alcohol and drugs can affect music performance, academic progress, and can lead to serious legal or judicial consequences. If you are thinking about cutting back or quitting, for whatever reason, or you would like to help a friend who exhibits worrisome behavior students are encouraged to know the facts and get educated. Suggestions and available resources include:

- 1. **Curtis Counselors** A confidential option for students who are experiencing negative consequences as a result of their alcohol and other drug use is to make an appointment with a Curtis counselor. Refer to the Wellness Resources: Student Guide to Health and Well-Being at Curtis for names and contact information for the counselors and a comprehensive list of Frequently Asked Questions.
- 2. **Penn Student Health Services -** Make an appointment. The clinical professionals at Penn are happy to help and can provide advice and good counsel. They can also provide you helpful information about the consequences of excessive drinking and abundance of educational tools available through Penn's Alcohol and Other Drug Program Initiatives.
- Rock Resource Library Resources on student health and well-being are among the wellness holdings at the library. <u>The Musicians Health and Wellness Guide</u> is a continually updated page dedicated to the resources from the Library in print and electronic form. Library staff members are happy to help and assist you.
- 4. The Web and Curtis Portal- Links for many websites on alcohol and drug addiction, education, and prevention are available in the Student Services section of the Curtis Portal. Among them is College Drinking: Changing the Culture, created by the National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism (NIAAA) at www.collegedrinkingprevention.gov/

Students should refer to the Curtis Student Code of Conduct for information about the student disciplinary procedure or meet with a member of the student services staff.

Drug and Alcohol Amnesty

In cases of intoxication and/or alcohol poisoning, the primary concern is the health and safety of the individual(s) involved. Individuals are strongly encouraged to call for medical assistance (dial 9-1-1) for themselves or for a friend/acquaintance who is dangerously intoxicated. No student seeking medical treatment for an alcohol or other drug-related overdose will be subject to Curtis Student Code of Conduct disciplinary procedures for the sole violation of using or possessing alcohol or drugs. This policy shall extend to another Curtis student seeking help for the intoxicated student.

No Smoking

In compliance with applicable laws, smoking inside Curtis (all buildings), the bridges between its buildings, Lenfest Hall terrace, fire stairs, and near emergency exits is strictly prohibited. Smoking also is strictly prohibited outdoors within twenty (20) feet of any entrance or exit of any Curtis buildings, out of consideration for the health of Curtis students, faculty, staff, and visitors. This includes the entrances to 1720 and 1726 Locust Street, Lenfest Hall, Rubenstein Centre, as well as the handicapped-accessible entrance to Field Concert Hall and all emergency exits.

Further, cigarette butts should be properly disposed of, rather than dropped outside the buildings as smokers enter. We encourage all smokers to consider becoming nonsmokers.

Any student who is violating this policy will be informed that smoking is prohibited by law in those areas (referred to as the no-smoking areas) and will be requested to immediately refrain from smoking or leave the no-smoking areas. Applicable law provides for reporting to appropriate authorities if a person does not comply with a request to immediately refrain from smoking or leave the no-smoking areas. Any student engaged in smoking in any building or facility of Curtis, or other no-smoking areas, will be subject to disciplinary action under the Student Code of Conduct. The word "smoking" includes inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, or other such device that contains tobacco or other smoke-producing products including "e-cigarettes".

STUDENT TECHNOLOGY POLICY

This policy defines the boundaries of "acceptable use" of limited Curtis electronic resources, including computers, networks, e-mail services and electronic information sources. Every student is responsible for using the Curtis Institute of Music (Curtis) electronic mail and Information Technology (IT) systems properly and in accordance with this policy.

A few general items to keep in mind:

- The e-mail and IT systems are the property of Curtis. They have been provided by Curtis for use in your educational life at Curtis.
- The Internet can be a valuable source of information and research. Use of the Internet must be tempered with common sense and good judgment. Use of the Internet via Curtis's computer system constitutes consent by the user to all of the terms and conditions of this policy.
- Electronic devices are often compromised because of the lack of strong passwords. Be sure to create passwords that would be difficult for someone else to guess and do not share them with anyone. Always remember to log out when leaving a website on which you have used a password.
- Electronic devices are valuable tools that are expensive to replace. Please use your good judgment and do not leave your devices unattended. You may wish to purchase insurance coverage for your valuables.

Copyrighted Material

Downloading and/or sharing copyrighted videos, songs, and other material is stealing. As an artist in training, you should be extra sensitive to the intellectual property rights of others. The e-mail and IT systems of Curtis must not be used to send (upload) or receive (download) copyrighted materials, trade secrets, proprietary financial information, or similar materials. Students may not illegally copy material protected under copyright law or make that material available to others for copying. Students are responsible for complying with copyright law and applicable licenses that may apply to software, files, graphics, documents, messages, and other material they wish to download or copy. Curtis has installed software designed to block illegal file-sharing, but this software cannot guarantee compliance with the law. Students, if uncertain about whether certain information is copyrighted, proprietary, or otherwise inappropriate for transfer, should resolve all doubts in favor of not transferring the information. The unauthorized distribution of copyrighted material, including peer-to-peer file sharing, may subject the student to civil, criminal, and institutional liabilities. Illegal peer-to-peer file sharing and/or unauthorized distribution of copyrighted materials using the Curtis information technology system may result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal from Curtis, as described in the Student Code of Conduct.

All performances sponsored by Curtis either on campus or at other venues are the sole property of Curtis. Please review the terms of Curtis's <u>License and Release</u>. Students may view these performances for educational purposes only.

No Expectation of Privacy

The computers and computer accounts given to students are to assist them in their education. Students should not have an expectation of privacy in anything they create, store, send, or receive on the Curtis computer network. The computer network consists of Curtis-owned computer workstations, laptops, mobile devices, the wireless network and the infrastructure to support all of the above, as well as all network traffic.

Remember, you are accountable for what you and your computer and/or mobile devices do on the network, whether it is intentional or not.

Disclaimer of Liability for Use of Internet

The Internet is a worldwide network of computers that contains billions of pages of information. Users are cautioned that many of these pages include offensive, sexually explicit, and inappropriate material. It can be difficult to avoid at least some contact with this material while using the Internet. Even innocuous search requests may lead to sites with highly offensive content. In addition, having an e-mail address on the Internet may lead to receipt of unsolicited e-mail and electronic messages containing offensive content. Users accessing the Internet do so at their own risk.

Blocking of Inappropriate Content

Because we are governed by Federal Trade Commission (FTC) regulations, we have software that is designed to prevent our system from being subject to unauthorized activity. Inappropriate sites may be blocked from access by Curtis. In the event you encounter inappropriate material while browsing on the Internet, immediately disconnect from the site, regardless of whether the site was subject to our internal blocking software. If you are trying to download material you feel is safe but is being blocked, please contact the InfoTech@curtis.edu for assistance.

Accessing the Internet

To ensure security and to avoid the spread of viruses, students accessing the Internet through a computer attached to Curtis's network must do so through an approved Internet firewall. Accessing the Internet directly from separate Internet connections not maintained by Curtis, e.g., non-Curtis WIFI is strictly prohibited unless the computer you are using is not connected to the

Curtis network. Students are not permitted to setup their own wireless networks anywhere at Curtis.

Duty to Not Waste Computer Resources

Students must not deliberately perform acts that waste computer resources or unfairly monopolize resources to the exclusion of others. These acts include, but are not limited to, sending mass mailings or chain letters, spending excessive amounts of time on the Internet in our labs or public access areas (for example, the Student Lounges, Rock Resource Center, Lenfest Hall computer lab, etc.), playing games when other students need to use the computer for schoolwork, engaging in online chat groups that monopolize the computer, printing multiple copies of documents, or otherwise creating unnecessary network traffic. Because audio, video, and picture files can require significant storage space and/or bandwidth, files of this or any other sort should not be downloaded unless they are related to your education.

All e-mail and electronic messages are stored on a central backup system in the normal course of data management.

Your email account has a limited amount of storage space. Users should routinely delete outdated or otherwise unnecessary e-mail and computer files. Electronic housekeeping will keep the system running smoothly and effectively, as well as minimize maintenance.

Students are reminded to be courteous to other users of the system and always to conduct themselves in a professional manner. Electronic messages are sometimes misdirected or forwarded and may be viewed by persons other than the intended recipient. Remember the golden rule of computing: Would you want your e-mail message, text, or Facebook comment to appear on the front page of the New York Times?

Prohibited Activities

The following activities are not permitted:

- Engaging in the unauthorized entry into or transfer of any Curtis computer file or the file or computer of any member of the Curtis community.
- Using or attempting to use another person's identification or password or computer account.
- Misrepresentation (including forgery) of the identity of the sender or source of an electronic communication.
- The interception or attempted interception of communications by parties not explicitly intended to receive them.

- Making Curtis computer facilities or resources available to individuals not affiliated with Curtis without approval by an authorized Curtis official.
- Alteration of the content of a message originating from another person or computer with intent to deceive.
- Use of any computer or electronic device to interfere with the work of another member of the community and/or the normal operation of Curtis.
- Use of Curtis computers, e-mail accounts, or labs for illegal purposes or for the transmission of material that is unlawful, harassing, libelous, invasive of another's privacy, abusive, threatening, harmful, vulgar, obscene, or otherwise objectionable, or that infringes or may infringe upon the intellectual property or other rights of a person or organization. This applies to the use of electronic messaging, texting, Facebook or any other social media outlet.
- Cyber-bullying.
- Engaging in harassment (sexual or other) through e-mail, social media or other IT systems. No e-mail or other electronic message should be created or sent if it contains intimidating, hostile, or offensive material concerning race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability, or any other classification protected by law.
- Intentionally compromising the privacy or security of electronic information, including changing the configuration of the computers established by Curtis and its IT consultants, including altering a computer to a non-English language format.
- Soliciting for religious or political causes, commercial enterprises, pyramid schemes, outside organizations, or other non-educational or non-professional-related purposes.

Violation of any of these regulations may result in your loss of computing privileges and/or disciplinary action under the Lenfest Hall Housing Agreement or the Student Code of Conduct.

Virus Detection

Files obtained from sources outside Curtis, including storage devices brought from home; files downloaded from the Internet, newsgroups, bulletin boards, or other online services; files attached to e-mail; and files provided by customers or vendors may contain dangerous computer viruses that may damage Curtis's computer network. Students should never download files from the Internet, open e-mail and attachments from outsiders, or use storage devices from non-Curtis sources. If you suspect that a virus has been introduced into the Curtis's network, notify InfoTech@curtis.edu immediately.

ACADEMIC HONESTY POLICY

Students enrolled in courses at the Curtis Institute of Music will be expected to complete their work with the highest degree of academic integrity.

Faculty members and students have rights and responsibilities outlined in the Academic Honesty Policy.

Students whose work or conduct is considered to be in violation of this policy will be required to meet with their teachers and to follow the Academic Honesty procedures to determine whether an infraction has occurred and, if so, how the violation will be addressed and resolved.

Responsibilities of the Instructor

The Curtis Institute of Music will publish this policy on the website in order to make it available to every student and faculty member. Instructors are obliged to include a statement concerning the Academic Honesty Policy in their syllabi, and they are encouraged to discuss the policy with their students.

If an instructor suspects that a student has violated the policy, the instructor will request an explanation from the student. If the instructor determines that no violation has occurred, the matter will be dropped. If the instructor determines that a violation has occurred and it is a first offense for the student, the instructor may resolve the matter by following the procedures for an informal or a formal resolution. Any additional violations will require formal resolutions.

Responsibilities of the Student

Students should be familiar with the Academic Honesty Policy and should bring any questions or concerns they have about the policy and its application to the attention of an academic faculty member or the senior associate dean of academics.

Violations of the Academic Honesty Policy

Violations of the Academic Honesty Policy will be judged seriously and thoroughly. The following actions will be considered infractions of the policy: plagiarism; cheating; and receiving and/or providing unauthorized assistance on exams, essays, composition projects, or harmony, counterpoint, or solfège homework. Other violations include presenting the work of others as your own and using technological devices that have not been approved by the instructor.

Informal Resolution

If an instructor or proctor observes an act of academic dishonesty, or if an instructor or proctor believes that a student has engaged in an academically dishonest act outside of the classroom, he or

she may notify the student in question and require the student's attendance at a meeting to discuss the incident.

In the case of academic dishonesty, the instructor may choose to resolve the issue by failing the student on that particular assignment, exam, or essay. It is recommended that the instructor make a note of the incident and its resolution for his or her personal file and inform the senior associate dean of academics in accordance with current guidelines.

If a student violates the Academic Honesty Policy a second time, the instructor must begin the formal resolution process immediately.

Formal Resolution

Any instructor or student may choose to utilize the office of the dean to create a formal resolution of the alleged infraction of the Academic Honesty Policy.

If an instructor or proctor observes a student violating the Academic Honesty Policy, or suspects a violation has occurred, he or she will discuss the infraction with the student. If the instructor determines that a formal resolution is required, he or she will inform the dean and, together, they will determine an appropriate sanction for the violation. The instructor will write an account of the incident and the resolution for his or her own file and will send copies to the student and the dean. If a student has committed more than one act of academic dishonesty, the major teacher will be notified.

If a student is found to have violated the Academic Honesty Policy and feels that the decision or the sanctions are inappropriate, he or she has the right to initiate the appeals process.

Sanctions

Students who violate the Academic Honesty Policy may be sanctioned in any or all of the following ways: grade penalty (an instructor may refuse to correct an assignment or exam and/or may require the rewriting of the assignment or exam), grade reduction (a grade of F will be given for the work in which the offense occurred), course failure, academic probation, expulsion from the Bachelor of Music program, and expulsion from Curtis.

For sanctions of lower rank than course failure, the dean and the instructor will determine whether a permanent report should be placed in the student's file, the final decision resting with the dean. For sanctions of course failure, academic probation, expulsion from the Bachelor of Music program, or expulsion from Curtis, a permanent report will be placed in the student's file.

Appeals Process

A student who has been found to have violated the Academic Honesty Policy has the right to appeal the decision to the instructor and to the dean in writing and must initiate the process within

ten school days from being informed of the determination of the violation. The student also has the right to request that the academic appeals committee hear the case and render a decision. The only issues that may be appealed by the student are (1) Did a violation of the Academic Honesty Policy occur? and (2) Was the sanction determined by the instructor and/or the dean inappropriate?

When a student has taken an informal appeal to the instructor and the dean, the decision on that appeal will constitute the administrative decision from which a further appeal may be taken to the academic appeals committee. A student (or parent) shall have ten school days following the receipt of that administrative decision to make a request for a formal hearing before the academic appeals committee. The ruling of the academic appeals committee shall be final. (Academic Appeals Committee includes academic faculty representatives (two), the Registrar, and student representative. This committee hears appeals by students concerning rulings by the dean's office regarding academic standing, grades, etc.)

Sources: This Academic Honesty Policy was developed by a faculty committee, which reviewed the policies of numerous institutions, including the Pennsylvania State System of Higher Education, Lock Haven University, and Drexel University.

In order to promote the finest educational experience possible, Curtis has established high standards of conduct for its students. Individual students are expected to know and comply with the Student Code of Conduct and policies of the school. Students who violate, attempt to violate, or aid others in violating its provisions may face sanctions for their actions.
